
 
Chief Executive   
Ian Davidson  
 
 

www.tendringdc.gov.uk 
Minicom: 01255 475566  

 
 
 
 
 

 
IAN DAVIDSON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, ESSEX, CO15 1SE.  TELEPHONE (01255) 686868 

 

RESOURCES AND SERVICES 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: Monday, 22 July 2024 

TIME: 7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: Town Hall, Station Road, Clacton-on-
Sea, CO15 1SE 

 

 
 
MEMBERSHIP: 
 

 

Councillor P Honeywood (Chairman) 
Councillor M Cossens (Vice Chairman) 
Councillor Bensilum 
Councillor Doyle 
Councillor Harris 
 

Councillor S Honeywood 
Councillor Newton 
Councillor Smith 
Councillor Steady 
 

 

AG
EN

D
A

Public Document Pack

http://www.tendringdc.gov.uk/


  
Most Council meetings are open to the public and press. The space for 
the public and press will be made available on a first come first served 
basis. Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the 
meeting date and the Council aims to publish Minutes within five working 
days of the meeting. Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large 
print, in Braille, or on disc, tape, or in other languages. 
 
This meeting will be filmed by the Council for live and/or subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s website. The whole of the meeting will be 
filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt items, and the 
footage will be on the website for up to 24 months (the Council retains 
one full year of recordings and the relevant proportion of the current 
Municipal Year). The Council will seek to avoid/minimise footage of 
members of the public in attendance at, or participating in, the meeting. 
In addition, the Council is obliged by law to allow members of the public 
to take photographs, film, audio record and report on the proceedings at 
public meetings. The Council will only seek to prevent this should it be 
undertaken in a disruptive or otherwise inappropriate manner. 
 
If you have any queries regarding webcasting or the recording of 
meetings by the public, please contact Keith Simmons Email: 
democraticservices@tendringdc.gov.uk or Telephone on 01255 686580 
 
 

 

 
 DATE OF PUBLICATION: Friday, 12 July 2024  

 



AGENDA 
 
  
1 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions  
 
 The Committee is asked to note any apologies for absence and substitutions received 

from Members. 
  

2 Minutes of the Last Meeting (Pages 7 - 16) 
 
 To confirm and sign as a correct record, the minutes of the last meeting of the 

Committee, held on 5 March 2024. 
  

3 Declarations of Interest  
 
 Councillors are invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other 

Registerable Interests of Non-Registerable Interests, and the nature of it, in relation to 
any item on the agenda. 
  

4 Questions on Notice pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 38  
 
 Subject to providing two working days' notice, a Member of the Committee may ask the 

Chairman of the Committee a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has 
powers or duties which affect the Tendring District and which falls within the terms of 
reference of the Committee. 
  

5 Portfolio Holder Introduction - Portfolio Holder for the Environment  
 
 The Resources and Services OSC recorded at its meeting on 21 June 2023 (minute 21 

refers) that there was, in its view, value in inviting to each of its next several meetings, a 
different Portfolio Holder to address it on the focus for their Portfolio. For this meeting, 
Councillor Bush (Portfolio Holder for the Environment) has been invited to address the 
Committee in respect of his Portfolio. Previously, the Committee has been addressed by 
the Leader & Corporate Finance and Governance Portfolio Holder (Cllr M Stephenson), 
the Deputy Leader & Economic Growth, Regeneration and Tourism Portfolio Holder (Cllr I 
Henderson) and the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Planning (Councillor Baker). The 
purpose of the invitation is to enable the Portfolio Holder to provide a broad introduction 
to their Portfolio, including their current issues and challenges (as well as priorities for 
2024/25). 
  

6 Review of the Work Programme (Pages 17 - 32) 
 
 The report provides the Committee with an update on its approved Work Programme for 

2023/24 (including progress with enquiries set out in its Work Programme), feedback to 
the Committee on the decisions in respect of previous recommendations from the 
Committee in respects of enquiries undertaken and a list of forthcoming decisions for 
which notice has been given since publication of the agenda for the Committee’s last 
meeting. 
 
The report also provides an update of the current position on the development of the work 
programme for 2024/25. This Committee is specifically invited to determine a proposed 
Work Programme to be submitted to the meeting of Council on 6 August 2024 for 
approval. 
  

7 The Spendells Project - REPORT TO FOLLOW  
 



 To consider the circumstances that led to the unauthorized expenditure being incurred in 
respect of the reconfiguration of Spendells House, Naze Park Road, Walton on the Naze, 
to provide temporary housing. 
 
The enquiry shall receive an update on the Spendells project, the outcomes of the 
investigations into the unauthorised expenditure and the learning (and application of that 
learning) to other major projects and programmes. 
 

 
 



 
Date of the Next Scheduled Meeting 
 
The next scheduled meeting of the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is to be held in the Town Hall, Station Road, Clacton-on-Sea, CO15 1SE at 
7.30 pm on Tuesday, 3 September 2024. 
 

 
 

Information for Visitors 
 
 
 

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

There is no alarm test scheduled for this meeting.  In the event of an alarm sounding, please 
calmly make your way out of any of the fire exits in the hall and follow the exit signs out of the 
building. 
 
Please heed the instructions given by any member of staff and they will assist you in leaving the 
building and direct you to the assembly point. 
 
Please do not re-enter the building until you are advised it is safe to do so by the relevant member 
of staff. 
 
Your calmness and assistance is greatly appreciated. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 

HELD ON TUESDAY, 5TH MARCH, 2024 AT 7.30 PM 
IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM  - TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, 

CO15 1SE 
 
Present: Councillors P Honeywood (Chairman), M Cossens (Vice-Chairman), 

Bensilum, Griffiths, S Honeywood, Newton, Smith and Steady 
 

Also Present:  Councillor Barry (as TDCs member on the NEPP) and Councillor 
Land (as ECC Chairman of the NEPP) 

In Attendance: Damian Williams (Corporate Director (Operations and Delivery)), 
Lisa Hastings (Assistant Director (Governance) & Monitoring 
Officer), Richard Barrett (Assistant Director (Finance and IT) & 
Section 151 Officer), Keith Simmons (Head of Democratic Services 
and Elections & Deputy Monitoring Officer), Andrew Nepean (Public 
Realm Operations Manager), Keith Durran (Committee Services 
Officer) and Bethany Jones (Committee Services Officer) 

 
 

37. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
An apology for absence was submitted by Councillor Doyle (with no substitution). 
 

38. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETINGS  
 
It was RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meetings of the Committee, held on 19 
September 2023 and 10 January 2024, be approved as a correct record and be signed 
by the Chairman.  
 

39. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
In relation to the matter set out at Minute 44 below, Councillors Honeywood and Land 
declared for the public record that they were also Members of the Essex County Council 
(as the authority responsible for on-street traffic regulation and enforcement).  They 
remained throughout the item and participated and voted.   
 

40. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38  
 
On this occasion no Councillor submitted notice of a question. 
 

41. PORTFOLIO HOLDER INTRODUCTION - PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING & 
PLANNING  
 
This Committee had recorded, at its meeting on 21 June 2023 (Minute 21 refers), that 
there was, in its view, value in inviting to each of its next several meetings, a different 
Portfolio Holder to address it on the focus for their Portfolio. For this meeting, Councillor 
Baker (Portfolio Holder for Housing & Planning) addressed the Committee in respect of 
his Portfolio.  His introduction is recorded immediately below. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

“Licensing, A revised and updated Taxi Private Hire Policy was introduced in late 2023, 
and adopted by Cabinet on 10th November 2023. I will be meeting with officers shortly 
to speak in regard to the ongoing budget and to identify if any savings can be made 
within it going forward, to contribute towards the savings that are required over the next 
three years.  No current issues as most of Licensing is either demand led (taxi, licensed 
premises etc) or response led (i.e. enforcement issues reported).Planning and 
Conservation Appraisals, A number of Conservation Appraisals have been out for 
consultation and have been prepared to submit to Cabinet for adoption. A number are 
either still out for consultation or have recently finished, and again will be submitted to 
Cabinet, over several meetings, for adoption within this calendar year. That will then 
conclude the 20 Conservation appraisals that have been completed in a relatively short 
period of time. The Local Plan Review is ongoing, with a lot of work to be done by a 
small team, which will see some policies removed, some revised, and some unchanged. 
The importance of this review means that it must keep to the very strict timetable in 
order that an updated Local Plan can be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in the 
Summer (June) of 2025, and once it has been found sound, to be then adopted by TDC 
Autumn 2026. The Local Plan will then run until 2041. 
 
Tendring Colchester Border Garden Community. The Development Plan Document 
(DPD) was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 22nd September 2023 and an 
Inspector has been appointed. No definite date has yet been set for a hearing, although 
four days have been suggested as to the length of time required. Again after it has been 
found sound, after any modifications required to policies etc, it will be adopted, hopefully 
later this year. A hybrid planning application (outline with part Detailed) from Latimer, the 
developer appointed, is now expected to be in summer of 2025.  
 
Other Planning Matters, Jaywick Sands Place Plan – the final consultation on this 
document has been completed, and once comments have been taken into 
consideration, the final report is likely to be presented at Cabinet, either in April or May 
for adoption. 
 
Two Neighbourhood plans are currently being examined by the Planning Inspectors, 
these being Ardleigh and Elmstead Market, with both at varying stages.  
A number of large applications are coming forward, in Little Oakley, the mitigation site 
for Bathside Bay (to be heard on Monday 18th March) as well as an application at 
Bathside Bay itself, with an application for change of use so it can be used in the 
renewable energy field.  
 
Challenges remain within 2024/2025 Budget as there was a £250k cost pressure within 
Planning for 23/24. Unfortunately Planning is somewhat reliant on planning applications 
coming forward with the relevant fees paid, so there can be peaks and troughs 
throughout the year which normally would balance out costs versus income. 
The issuing of a costs award against TDC in March 2023, which resulted in an award of 
over £100k being paid out, cannot be underestimated, and as I said at Cabinet on 10th 
November last year, “appeal and cost decisions like these remind us  that where 
planning proposals do accord with the Local Plan – there is an expectation both in law 
and in national planning policy that those proposals should be approved unless there 
are material considerations, that can be justified with evidence, to suggest otherwise.” 
 
I will be meeting soon with Mr Guiver and other officers to discuss the planning budgets 
for 24/25 and where savings can possibly be made going forward to contribute towards 

Page 8



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

the savings that are required over the next three years.  As you can see there is a lot 
happening, along with the day to day work of dealing with planning applications/appeals 
and enforcement issues, so I would like to take this opportunity to give my thanks to Mr 
Guiver and his officers for all their hard work. 
 
Housing, Honeycroft – 13 Bungalows will be built out by 31/10/24 with occupation soon 
after. I have been speaking with officers about the possibility of using this opportunity to 
free up under occupied housing locally. Spendells – 30/31 rooms will be provided as 
temporary accommodation, with occupation as soon as possible after 
handover/completion this year. There is currently a slight delay due to a theft and 
criminal damage. Two members of staff have been employed to assist families at this 
location, as well as temporary accommodation elsewhere across the District. 
 
An aspiration is to have similar properties, owned by TDC, for temporary 
accommodation, but that is at a very early stage, and will be dependent on appropriate 
properties and funding. 
 
Stock condition surveys, of TDC stock – are currently ongoing which will indicate where 
any urgent/priority issues need to be dealt with. The intention is to achieve surveys of 
25% of the Housing stock a year, and they were started in the mid November 2023. As 
at 4/3/24 just under 300 have been completed. Data obtained from these surveys will 
help us to plan where improvements are required, where repairs need to be actioned 
quickly, and also ensures that we are complying with the RSH, - this will now be an 
ongoing task. A new regulatory regime is starting in April this year, and together with 
Decent Homes Standard 2 (unlikely before end of this year apparently), will influence 
where the Housing Investment Programme (HIP) is directed.  
 
A number of new policies are coming forward in the next few months, as well as 
revisions, due to either the Housing Ombudsman or RSH, and a number have already 
come forward and been adopted. 
 
People presenting as Homeless, as the Committee is well aware, is an increasing 
problem not just locally or regionally, but countrywide, for a number of reasons, cost of 
living, inflation, reduction in the private rented sector etc, and it is felt that work is 
required to prevent homelessness, this in turn will then have an impact on the increasing 
costs of Temporary Accommodation.  Three new policies were recently adopted. 
 
Temporary Accommodation, linked to the above, has seen a steady increase. For the 
calendar year 2023, 369 households identified as having a priority need were placed in 
Temporary Accommodation. 
 
In the last quarter of 2023 (October-December) there were 440 approaches to TDC as 
homeless, of which 142 were placed in Temporary Accommodation. In the same period 
132 were moved into settled accommodation (however these last figures might include 
those from the previous quarter). 
 
Government, last week, announced the figures of the Homelessness Prevention Grant 
for local authorities, which is, if my adding up is correct, means we will receive over £1 
million pounds. I am meeting with our S151 officer to confirm the exact figure which will 
be available. 
 

Page 9



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

Acquisition & Disposal of Housing Assets – As I have said previously to this Committee 
there is an intention to dispose of those properties within our Housing Stock that are too 
costly to maintain or cannot reach the Decent Homes Standard.  
  
Increasing our stock is important, but it needs to be in the areas where it is most 
needed, which will be outlined in a Strategic Housing Market Assessment being done 
for the review of the Local Plan. 
 
In regard to acquisitions/disposals a new Asset Management Plan is currently in draft 
form to deal with this issue.  
 
I have recently signed decisions to accept 17 ‘gifted’ units, and also initiation of the 
property dealing procedure for two further properties in the north of the District.  
 
A Tenants Panel meeting was held in February, the first since the same time last year, 
and it now has a Chairman. We will be looking to hold similar meetings quarterly and 
across the District. 
 
On 29th February a Private Landlords forum was held, and the intention is to hold one 
annually, or possibly more often. 
 
There is also the Healthy Homes Initiative being undertaken in Jaywick, which has 
funding for three years, with there being three stages of this initiative, these being 
housing, environment and open spaces. I am due to receive an interim report on 
progress, and measurable successes but I am aware that a number of improvement and 
prohibition notices have been served on landlords, and this work to improve residents 
standard of living is ongoing. This stage started in March 2023.  
 
In regard to the environment stage there is a planned action week this month, in 
conjunction with different services within TDC and also our external partners, as well as 
community groups. 
 
Budgets, I will be speaking to officers to discuss budgets, and using funds more 
efficiently from HIP for own stock. As I have previously stated, there will be 6 monthly 
reviews of the HRA 30 year plan, and the next meeting for that is scheduled for May”. 
 
Following the above introduction from Councillor Baker there was an opportunity for 
Members of the Committee to ask him questions.  The questions asked, and the 
responses provided, are set out here: 
 

QUESTIONS ANSWERS 
In relation to the Tendring Colchester 
Borders Garden Community and the 
development of schools, do you envisage 
new schools in development for the 
TCBGC having an impact on existing 
schools and possibly leading to closures? 

Such things would be too far into the future 
to comment, also education provision was 
under the remit of Essex County Council 
and not Tendring District Council. 

Honeycroft – Would the Council be 
offering places to the original residents 
once the site was habitable again? 

TDC made a commitment under the 
previous administration to make offers to 
the previous residents first, this 
administration would honour that 

Page 10



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

commitment. 
Has the Council thought about giving 
incentives to our current housing tenants if 
they were willing to move to more 
appropriate housing thus freeing up 
needed properties. 

Yes, it was being considered, but how this 
would be implemented was still to be 
decided and cost would have to be 
considered. 

Jaywick Team – Many officers have left 
the team, what was the position with 
replacing them? 

The majority of the officers left to facilitate 
other roles within the Council. At present 
the team was staffed by agency workers 
as recruitment was difficult at present, but 
there were plans in place to replace them. 

Spendells, the opening has now moved 
from April 2024 to November 2024. Do you 
know how this would affect project spend? 

I don’t have those figures to hand, but 
would come back with an answer. 

 
Following the questions and their related responses.  
 
The Committee RESOLVED to thank the Portfolio Holder for attending the meeting and 
providing his introduction and the responses to the questions asked of him. 
 

42. REVIEW OF THE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee had before it the report in the name of the Head of Democratic Services 
& Elections in respect of the work programme of the Committee (setting out its progress 
with enquiries scheduled for this year), the responses from the Cabinet to 
recommendations from this Committee on enquiries undertaken by it and on matters 
included in the Council’s list of forthcoming decisions since the publication of the 
agenda for the Committee’s last meeting.  The Cabinet’s response to the 
recommendations from the Committee (arising from an interim report of the Council 
Enforcement Arrangements Task and Finish Group concerning Planning Enforcement) 
from its meeting on 10 January 2024 (Minute 35 refers) would need to be submitted to 
the next meeting of this Committee.  
 
The Chairman, in his role of Chairman of the Council Enforcement Arrangements Task 
and Finish Group, updated the Committee on the further progress of the enquiry being 
undertaken by that Task and Finish Group. He explained how the Task and Finish 
Group had met earlier that day and was now progressing with the element of the 
enquiry concerning fly tipping and mobile CCTV. He was pleased with the progress so 
far. 
 
The Head of Democratic Services and Elections drew the Committee’s attention to an 
item in the Committee’s work programme “To consider particular services/functions of 
the Council that should or could be Self-Funding” and how this work had not yet taken 
place and it was unlikely to be carried out in the year to July 2024.  Ensuring that the 
financial position of the Council was fully subject to scrutiny was an important element of 
the role of this Committee.  As such, it was appropriate to commence thinking about the 
work programme for the Committee for 2025/26 and how that financial scrutiny could be 
appropriately delivered.    
 
The Committee was also informed that there was now a mandatory requirement for 
Members of this Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees to undertake training in 

Page 11



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

relation to “work programming and questioning skills”.  In this regard the Council was 
reminded of the Councillor Development session on 13 March 2024 on the matter of 
“work programming and questioning skills” for overview and scrutiny.  
 
The Members attention was drawn to the responses from Cabinet to the Committee’s 
recommendations in relation to Budget Scrutiny and Jaywick Sands Sunspot. 
 
The Head of Democratic Services and Elections spoke of the forthcoming decisions 
recorded in the report to the Committee and how a further proposed decision had been 
published since the publication of the agenda for this meeting about the creation of a 
Town Board for Clacton on Sea (as part of the arrangements to access the Future of 
Towns government funding) and how this would be reported to be next meeting of the 
Committee.  He envisaged that prior to that meeting there would be further information 
on the Town Board and the plans for investing the funding to be provided under the 
Future of Towns government scheme that would be provided to Councillors.   
 
The Committee RESOLVED to receive and note the report and, as a possible 
provisional enquiry for the Work Programme for the Committee in 2024/25, the following 
be submitted: 
 
Proposed PSPO (Nuisance Vehicles) - Brook Park, Clacton-on-Sea – on the basis that 
dispersal and displacement of issues following the adoption of such Orders was a 
matter that rightly should be monitored. 
 

43. TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Assistant Director of Finance and IT introduced the report and explained to the 
Committee the importance of Treasury Management to Local Authorities especially 
considering what has happened to Local Authorities throughout the Country of the last 
12 to 18 months. 
 
The Members were informed that the documents before them (The Capital and 
Investment Strategies) explained the governance arrangements around capital 
investment as well as governance arrangements for borrowing and investment, for the 
Council. The documents were approved by The Leader of the Council, in his role as 
Portfolio Holder for Governance and Finance, for consultation tonight, after which this 
Committee’s input would go on to Cabinet with a view to a recommendation then being 
submitted to Council. 
 
The Committee’s attention was drawn to Appendix A of the agenda, where the changes 
to the strategy were highlighted. 
 
The Members were reminded that the Council had lent Birmingham City Council £6 
million, and that the first repayment of £4 million was repaid on time, which was 
February 2024. He once again reenforced his position that lending to other local 
authorities was a safe investment with minimal risk. 
 
The Committee was told that as the Council has a very risk adverse investment plan he 
did not envisage any issues with recent changes to the Governments Levelling Up and 
Regeneration Act. The Councils position was to accept a lower return on investments if 
it meant more security within the investment. 

Page 12



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

 
The report informed the Committee of other Councils delegation powers given to their 
section 151 Officers and how they had been considered “extraordinary” (the connotation 
being negative), the Head of Finance and IT assured the Committee that no such 
delegations existed at The Council. 
 
The Committee RESOLVED to thank the Assistant Director of Finance and IT for his 
attendance and to note the detail around Treasury Management as submitted in the 
report provided and as articulated by the Assistant Director. 
 
The Committee also RECOMMENDED TO CABINET that further clarity is required 
around the relative roles of consultation on the Council’s key investment proposals and 
the significant financial constraints on the Council over the coming years to ensure that 
the reader of the Treasury Strategy would be clear on the relative roles.   
 

44. ON STREET PARKING ARRANGEMENTS IN THE DISTRICT  
 
Further to Minute 39 above, and for the sake of public transparency, both Councillors P 
Honeywood and Land declared for the public record that they were both Essex County 
Councillors. 
 
The Head of Democratic Services and Elections informed the Committee that the 
enquiry into On Street Parking Arrangements, was approved by Full Council in July 
2023 and added to the work programme for the Community Leadership Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. The Chairmen of both Committees agreed that due to the time 
constraints of having this item heard, it was best served to the be discussed at this 
meeting by the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The Committee was provided with a report from the Corporate Director for Operations 
and Delivery on the North Essex Parking Partnership (NEPP) in relation to the 
establishment and operation of the Partnership.  A ‘rescue plan’ produced by the NEPP 
in view of severe financial issues affecting it was submitted s part of the report.  The 
Committee Members had also been provided with a separate report to be considered by 
the Council’s Cabinet on 12 March 2024 (Agenda Item 13 – Report of the Leisure & 
Public Realm Portfolio Holder – A6 Joint Committee Agreement of the North Essex 
Parking Partnership).   
 
The Committee heard from Councillor Barry, as this Council’s representative on the 
North Essex Parking Partnership (NEPP) (a joint Committee with the five other District 
Councils in North Essex and Essex County Council).He explained how his first meeting 
was in June 2023 and that at that time there were already historical concerns in relation 
the NEPP’s budget figures, he felt they didn’t add up and how he raised this as an issue 
at that meeting. 
 
Councillor Barry then explained to the Committee that with in the NEPP agreement 
there was the need for the organisation to have a designated Treasurer and when he 
enquired into this, at the second meeting in November 2023, he was met with the 
answer of “I don’t know, maybe it is Colchester City Council’s 106 Officer”? 
 
Due to this answer Councillor Barry stated that he was no longer able to agree on any 
matters in relation to NEPP finance until the financial records were signed off by the 

Page 13



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

Colchester City Council 106 Officer and after a full set of accounts were sent to each of 
the Partner Authorities 106 Officers for review. 
 
Councillor Barry outlined how after reading the agenda for the third meeting of the 
NEPP, set to take place in December 2023, he was unhappy that the figures were still 
not supplied and asked for the meeting to be postponed until 1 February 2024 so the 
figures could be supplied. At the meeting in February 2024, he asked for there to be 
monthly updates as it was coming to the end of the financial year. The level of deficit 
was so out of control he actively discussed the possibility of leaving the NEPP. 
 
The Committee heard that to leave the NEPP any Partner Authority must give 12 
months’ notice, and that notice must be given at the end of the financial year, that meant 
that if notice was given in after March 2024, the Council couldn’t leave the NEPP until 
April 2026.  
 
Councillor Barry had asked for a variation to the agreement that would allow the Council 
to either: 
 

a) Give the Council more time to scrutinise the finances of the NEPP and make an 
informed budget decision, or; 
 

b) make the decision to leave, but then have the ability to have that decision 
rescinded if the Council can scrutinise the finances of the NEPP and find them 
acceptable. 
 

The Committee heard from Councillor Dan Land, in his role with Essex County Council 
as Chairman of the NEPP, which he had been in post for nearly a year. He explained 
that on street parking enforcement was the responsibility of Essex County Council and 
that they contract out this work to the NEPP. This covered 6 District Authorities and 
each of them had 1 Councillor who sits on the NEPP Committee, each Councillor was 
joined by an Officer called a Client Officer. He explained that since he had joined the 
Committee there had been a lot of change in relation to its make-up, with constantly 
changing Councillors and Client Officers, he expressed that there was a definite lack of 
continuity. 
 
The Committee heard how the NEPP had faced financial challenges lately and some of 
that was down to the difficulty in employing enforcement staff as well as a raise in 
wages and a change to human behaviour, more people working from home has led to 
less parking fines. 
 
Councillor Land acknowledged that some information had been quite difficult to obtain 
but he was doing everything he can to make it as transparent as possible. 
 
During the debate Councillor Barry agreed that he was not in favour of the Council being 
unable to veto proposals for its own area and that any proposals to put on street parking 
charges along our seafronts was unacceptable. He also stated that he and the Councils 
151 Officer have both looked at the NEPPs figures, and they do not add up. He drew 
the Members attention the fact that the NEPP agreement states that there must be 
surplus of £400k with in their accounts before they can action any Traffic Road Orders 
(TRO’s) and at present that money was not in surplus in the NEPP’s accounts, this left 

Page 14



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

him questioning the legality of some of the NEPP’s actions. This level of concern was 
mirrored in 3 or 4 of the Partner Authorities. 
 
Councillor Barry highlighted how the debt revenue expected from each Partner Authority 
was different and that how it was calculated did not seem fair, with Tendring Council 
being one of the highest. 
 
The Chairman of the Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
commented that: 
 
“In my view the NEPP appears to have adopted a one size fits all approach to on street 
parking enforcement and as a result is unable to recognise when local issues need 
addressing. 
 
This is turn means specific enforcement action is not being taken when needed. 
 
In coastal areas such as ours the level of support needed can vary due to several 
issues including the time of year, whether there are events organised or simply the 
weather forecast. 
 
NEPP enforcement officers have not responded to this, rarely being around in the 
evening, or available for late night or special events for example. 
 
As the report states, there has been a reluctance by the NEPP to accept offers of 
support for enforcement other than outside of schools which has now been 
discontinued. 
 
There’s also a reluctance to delegate authority to issue Penalty Charge Notices to any 
enforcement officers unless employed directly by the NEPP. 
 
Listening to local people, this has resulted in an increasing number of complaints and 
dissatisfaction from residents. 
 
Two Possible Solutions 
 
To me there are two possible solutions to this problem that would befit both ECC and 
TDC. 
 
The return of all on-street parking and management to the district by means of a service 
level agreement with ECC creating a situation where local parking enforcement would 
be tailored to meet local needs by TDC. 
 
TDC would operate the on-street service at nil cost with surpluses paid to ECC for local 
highway related schemes and any losses would be met by TDC. 
 
Alternatively. 
 
For delegated authority to be given to TDC enforcement staff to enforce on-street 
parking within Tendring alongside officers from the NEPP. 
 
TDC would not seek any financial remuneration for this arrangement. 

Page 15



 Resources and Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 March 2024  

 

 
Conclusion 
 
Personally, I would prefer the first option but, in my view, either of these proposals 
would benefit both ECC and TDC and would show the two councils working together for 
the benefit of local people. 
 
In 2021 these proposals had the support of the then Leader of Tendring District Council, 
the Chief Executive, and TDC senior officers but were never progressed”.  
 
After an in-depth discussion it was moved by Councillor P Honeywood, seconded by 
Councillor Smith and unanimously agreed to RECOMMEND TO CABINET that: 
 
Alongside and in addition to the recommendations being considered by the Cabinet on 
12 March 2024 concerning the Council’s membership of the North Essex Parking 
Partnership, the following options be authorised as part of the negotiations with the 
Partnership and Essex County Council (ECC): 
 
(1) The return of all on-street parking and management to the District by 

means of a service level agreement with ECC creating a situation where local 
parking enforcement would be tailored to meet local needs by this Council.  This 
Council would operate the on-street service at nil cost with surpluses paid to ECC 
for local highway related schemes and any losses would be met by this Council; or 

 
(2) For delegated authority to be given to this Council’s enforcement staff to 

enforce on-street parking within Tendring alongside officers from the NEPP.  In 
this option, this Council would not seek any financial remuneration for this 
arrangement. 

  
 The meeting was declared closed at 9.45 pm  
  

 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 16



RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

22 JULY 2024 

REPORT OF HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND ELECTIONS 

A.1 WORK PROGRAMMING – INCLUDING MONITORING OF PREVIOUS 
RECOMMENDATIONS AND SUMMARY OF FORTHCOMING DECISIONS
(Report prepared by Keith Durran) 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
The report provides the Committee with an update on its approved Work Programme for 
2023/24 (including progress with enquiries set out in its Work Programme), feedback to 
the Committee on the decisions in respect of previous recommendations from the 
Committee in respects of enquiries undertaken and a list of forthcoming decisions for 
which notice has been given since publication of the agenda for the Committee’s last 
meeting.   

INVITEES

None. 

BACKGROUND

The Council commissioned the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) to undertake 
an ‘Overview & Scrutiny Development Review’ in 2021 as a way of further improving that 
function at the Council.  Two relevant recommendations arising from that review were: 

“Further strengthening the annual process for developing work 
programmes for each O&S committee - Engaging Members, Officers, 
partners and the public to prioritise the topics for review. This could include a 
selection criteria to identify appropriate topics for the work programme. 
Currently the work programme is also the last item on the agenda at O&S 
meetings, we would recommend bringing it to the beginning, so it can be given 
greater priority and benefit from more considered discussion, rather than being 
subject to the inevitable end of meeting fatigue. 

Reviewing how the recommendations are made and how impact is 
measured – This could include putting the ‘recommendations monitoring report’ 
at the beginning of agendas to orientate O&S towards outcomes-focused 
meetings, alongside an emphasis on finding strong recommendations from 
questioning to present to Cabinet (or partners) as improvement or challenge 
proposals.” 

The inclusion of the matters set out in the “purpose of this report” section above seeks to 
further re-inforce the inter-relationship of the matters referred to.  As such, it is designed to 
further support consideration of work programming of the Committee and contribute to 
addressing progress with the Corporate Plan. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



DETAILED INFORMATION

WORK PROGRAMME 2024/25 

The detailed matters relating to the following matters are set out in the relevant Appendix 
identified: 
(1) Proposed Work Programme Report for Full Council for 2024/25 – See Appendix A;  
(2) feedback to the Committee on the decisions in respect of previous recommendations 
from the Committee in respects of enquiries undertaken – see Appendix B; and  
(3) a list of forthcoming decisions for which notice has been given since publication of the 
agenda for the Committee’s last meeting – See Appendix C (THIS APPENDIX IS TO 
FOLLOW). 

In considering work programming matters, the Committee is further reminded of the other 
recommendations from the CfGS review undertaken in 2021: 

“Considering greater use of task and finish groups – This more informal 
type of O&S can allow improved cross-party working and detailed investigation 
of a single issue focussed on producing substantive recommendations.

Improved agenda planning and management - Committees should focus on 
one or two substantive items per agenda to allow for cross-cutting themes to be 
properly identified and explored, and different insights brought to bear on critical 
issues.

Considering how to engage the public in the work of O&S - This could 
include O&S going on more site visits in the community, inviting the public to 
offer ideas for work programmes, and greater use of social media channels for 
resident input and communicating the progress and impact of scrutiny work. 

A clearer focus on democratic accountability - Scrutiny of Cabinet Members 
should form a key part of the work programme, providing an opportunity to hold 
the Leader and portfolio holders to account for delivery of the corporate plan 
and any other issues O&S feel is important.” 

The Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee is one of two overview 
and scrutiny committees established by the Council to specifically focus on the following 
areas of Council work (as detailed in Article 6.02(i) of the Council’s Constitution): 

“To perform the role of Overview and Scrutiny and its functions in relation to: 

 The Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of the Committee will normally be 
Members of a political group that is not represented on the Cabinet. The 
Committee will hold 8 scheduled meetings per year but with the Chairman 
able to call additional formal meetings. Meetings of Task and Finish Groups 
can be called as required, following the terms of reference being agreed by 
the Committee. 

 To perform the role of Overview and Scrutiny and its functions in relation to 
the effective use of the Council’s resources including approval of discrete 
researched and evidenced reviews on the effectiveness. 

Financial Forecast Budget setting and monitoring (including General Fund & 
Page 18



Housing Revenue Account) 

 Service Delivery and Performance (where not delegated to the 
Community Leadership Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 

 Procurement and Contract Management 
 Transformation and Digital Strategies 
 Customer Service and Standards  

The Constitution provides for the two overview and scrutiny committees to submit a work 
programme to full Council for approval.  Rule 7 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules sets out the position as follows: 

“Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee will submit a work programme for the year ahead 
and a review of the previous year’s activities to the full Council for approval.  In addition it 
will be responsible for co-ordinating and prioritising its work programme on an ongoing 
basis. 

In preparing, co-ordinating and prioritising its programme, each Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee will take into account:- 

 The General Role and Principles of undertaking its functions, as set out in Part 2 
Article 6; 

 The planned work on the preparation of elements of the Budget and Policy 
Framework, as set out in the Council’s Business Plan; 

 The need for statutory timetables to be met; 
 The wishes of all members of the committee;  
 Requests from the Cabinet to carry out reviews; and 
 Requests from Group Leaders in accordance with Rule 8.”

In considering the Work Programme of enquiries, the Committee must have regard to the 
Corporate Plan 2024-28 and the themes of that Corporate Plan are: 

 Pride in our area and services to residents 
 Raising aspirations and creating opportunities 
 Championing our local environment 
 Working with partners to improve quality of life 
 Promoting our heritage offer, attracting visitors and encouraging them to stay longer 
 Financial Sustainability and openness 

It should also be noted that this Committee held an INFORMAL meeting on 20 June 2024 
and selected the items contained within the draft copy of the Council report Appendix A. 

The Democratic Services Team have also started talks with both Chairmen of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees into the creation of the Scrutiny Annual Report for the 
year 2023/24.  THIS REPORT IS TO FOLLOW.

RECOMMENDATION
a) That the Committee considers and notes the progress with enquiries set out 

in its Work Programme 2023/24, feedback to the Committee on the decisions 
in respect of previous recommendations and the list of forthcoming 
decisions. 

b) Approves the proposed work programme for the Community Leadership 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the 2024/25 municipal year

Page 19



That the Head of Democratic Services and Elections be authorised, following 
consultation with the Committee's Chairman, to: 

c) Finalise the review of the year 2023/24 Overview and Scrutiny Report to be 
submitted to Council. 

d) Appoint individual Councillors to Task and Finish Groups referenced in the 
Work Programme as, ultimately, approved by Council and then to make 
appropriate arrangements to call meetings of those Task and Finish Groups. 

Page 20



RESOURCES AND SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
FOR ENQUIRIES TO BE UNDERTAKEN IN 2024/25 

 
Item 
 
 

Date of Enquiry Relevant Corporate 
Plan Theme/Annual 
Cabinet Priority 

Information to be 
provided in advance 

Those to be 
invited to attend 

Articulated value 
of undertaking the 
review 

To consider the 
circumstances that led to 
the unahtorised 
expenditure being 
incurred in respect of the 
reconfiguration of 
Spendells House, Naze 
Park Road, Walton on the 
Naze, to provide 
temporary housing. 
 
The enquiry shall receive 
an update on the 
Spendells project, the 
outcomes of the 
investigations into the 
unauthorised 
expenditure and the 
learning (and application 
of that learning) to other 
major projects and 
programmes. 

At the Committee 
on 22 July 2024 

 
 
 Financial 

sustainability and 
openness 

 
Pride in our area 

and services to 
residents 

 

The report Cabinet on 
24 May 2024 
(constituting a report 
under S5A of the 
Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989) 
 
Statement from the 
Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Planning 
of the oversight that 
was in place for this 
project and the 
expenditure on it. 
 
The Councils rules 
and concerning 
incurring expenditure 
and the corporate 
approach to project 
management. 
 
What is the respective 
roles of Audit and 
Overview and Scrutiny 
in this area. 
 
Our rules and 
procedures 

Portfolio Holder  
for Housing and 
Planning  
 
Chief Executive  
 
Corporate 
Director, 
Operations & 
Delivery  
  
Assistant 
Director, 
Finance & IT 
 
Assistant 
Director, 
Governance 
 
 

To review the 
circumstances that 
led to the 
unauthorised 
expenditure and 
the 
appropriateness of 
arrangements in 
the Council to 
avoid/prevent such 
situations 
occurring. The 
review will enable 
the Committee to 
determine 
recommendations 
on these matters, 
and more widely, 
the performance 
monitoring 
arrangements that 
should be put in 
place to prevent 
repetition.  
The enquiry will 
further enable the 
Council to 
reassess the 
whole business 

P
age 21



surrounding project 
development. 
 
Linear path 
explanation of events, 
dates and costs of the 
overspend 
 
What is the assessed 
impact this will have 
on the Council going 
forward, both 
reputationally and 
financially. 

case for temporary 
accommodation. 
 
 

Portfolio Holder Update 
 
 

22 July 2024 
 
 

⧠ Championing 
our local 
environment 

 
⧠ Pride in our area 

and services to 
residents 

 
⧠ Working with 

Partners to 
improve quality 
of life 

 
⧠ Financial 

sustainability and 
openness 

 

 
To update the 
Committee on work in 
relation to his role as 
Portfolio Holder. 

Councillor Mike 
Bush – Portfolio 
Holder for 
Environment  

To enable the 
Committee to be 
aware of the 
significant areas of 
the responsibility 
with in the 
Portfolio and the 
areas the Portfolio 
Holder is 
addressing 
currently 

Post delivery scrutiny of 
the Sunspot commercial 
workspace in 
Brooklands, Jaywick 

Off agenda 
briefing note by 
the end of 
September 2024 

 
⧠ Financial 

sustainability and 
openness 

 Management 
arrangements for the 
commercial 
workspace. 

 
Portfolio Holder 
for Economic 
Growth, 

To provide the 
Committee with 
information on the 
development since 

P
age 22



 
 
 
 

  
Details of the lettings 
of the business units, 
shops and café and 
the use of the covered 
market area and event 
hall (including lease 
terms) from the 
opening of the 
development. 
 
Details as to how the 
operation of the 
workspace supports 
enhances, 
compliments activities 
at the Jaywick 
Resources Centre. 

Regeneration  
and Tourism 
 
Corporate 
Director, Place 
and Economy 

it opened and 
identify maters for 
further enquiry, 
would be 
beneficial. 

Portfolio Holder Update At Committee on 
3 September 
2024 

⧠ Championing 
our local 
environment 

 
⧠ Pride in our area 

and services to 
residents 

 
⧠ Working with 

Partners to 
improve quality 
of life 

 
⧠ Financial 

sustainability and 
openness 

 

 
To update the 
Committee on work in 
relation to his role as 
Portfolio Holder. 

Councillor Peter 
Kotz – Portfolio 
Holder for 
Assets 

To enable the 
Committee to be 
aware of the 
significant areas of 
the responsibility 
with in the 
Portfolio and the 
areas the Portfolio 
Holder is 
addressing 
currently 

P
age 23



To examine the Asset 
management 
arrangements of the 
Council and consider the 
extent to which asset 
acquisition and disposal 
is strongly linked to the 
ambitions of the 
corporate plan. 
 
The enquiry will look at 
land assets and their 
use/value to the Council 
and community 
properties, investment in 
them and the use to 
which they are put, IT 
Assets and Beach Hut 
(bases). 
 
[This mater will not look 
at Human Resources or 
matters in the Housing 
Revenue Account]. 
 
 

Through A Task 
and Finish Group 

⧠ Championing 
our local 
environment 

 
⧠ Pride in our area 

and services to 
residents 

 
⧠ Working with 

Partners to 
improve quality 
of life 

 
⧠ Raising 

aspirations and 
creating 
opportunities 

 
⧠ Promoting our 

heritage offer, 
attracting visitors 
and encouraging 
them to stay 
longer 

 
⧠ Financial 

sustainability and 
openness 

 

A complete list of TDC 
assets (specifically 
property & land) and 
the ward they are 
located in. 
 
Repairing obligations 
(for this Council) 
costings in relation to 
maintenance for land 
& property asset. 
 
The enquiry will look 
at unused assets (eg 
toilet block at the 
junction of Coppins 
Road and Old Road, 
Clacton). 
 
IT equipment and 
software acquisition, 
maintenance licences, 
disposal and the 
opportunity to 
harness digital 
solutions and be as 
efficient in 
transactional services, 
as possible across the 
Council. This should 
look at contacts (and 
costs of contact) and 
use of AI chatbot 
systems to improve 
experience and reduce 

Portfolio Holder 
Assets 
 
Assistant 
Director, 
Building and 
Public Realm 
 
Assistant 
Director Finance 
IT 
 
Appropriate 
other Portfolio 
Holders and 
Officers 

The enable the 
examination of 
asset management 
and utilisation with 
a view to 
supporting 
delivery of the 
corporate plan 
2024 and 
recommendations 
to release assets  
that do not 
contribute to that 
plan or otherwise 
rationalise assets 
to improve 
effectiveness and 
efficiency of those 
assets. 

P
age 24



multiple handling 
enquiries. 
 

Pre-Budget Scrutiny  
 
Consider long-term 
forecasts. 
Challenging 
assumptions/testing zero 
base budgeting. 
Consider repeated 
overspends/underspends 
Addressing 
performance/budget 
requirements.  

At Committee on 
13 January 2024 
[Pre-meeting 6 
January 2025] 

⧠ Championing 
our local 
environment 

 
⧠ Pride in our area 

and services to 
residents 

 
⧠ Working with 

Partners to 
improve quality 
of life 

 
⧠ Raising 

aspirations and 
creating 
opportunities 

 
⧠ Promoting our 

heritage offer, 
attracting visitors 
and encouraging 
them to stay 
longer 

 
⧠ Financial 

sustainability and 
openness 

 
 
 

The 2024/25 Budget 
and update the end of 
Q3, draft budget for 
2025/26 and the 
financial strategy plus 
details of significant 
overspend and 
underspend over the 
last five financial 
years.  

All Portfolio 
Holders 
 
All Members of 
Management 
Team 

 

P
age 25



Housing Strategy 
Development and 
Infrastructure and 
Temporary 
Accommodation. The 
enquiry will include a 
look at how the Council 
maintain its list of private 
landlords and if the 
Council quality check 
those properties as 
suitable. 
 
 

Through Task 
and Finish Group 

 
 
⧠ Working with 

Partners to 
improve quality 
of life 

 
 
⧠ Financial 

sustainability and 
openness 

Policies and Practice 
documents of the 
Council in respect of 
the use of private 
rented 
accommodation for 
those needing 
housing. 
 
The average time 
people are placed in 
temporary rented 
housing 
accommodation. 
Details of complaints 
by those people in 
rental 
accommodation. 
Numbers of HRA 
properties over the 
last five years 
including acquisitions 
and disposals. 
 
The current housing 
strategy and any 
development draft of a 
new strategy as well 
as an assessment as 
to how the current 
strategy has been 
delivered. 
 
 

Portfolio Holder, 
Housing and 
Planning. 
 
Assistant 
Director, 
Housing and 
Environment  
 
A representation 
of private 
landlords 

To look at possible 
improvements to 
temporary 
accommodation 
provision and 
make 
recommendations  
there on. 
 
To determine the 
strategic direction 
of the Council in 
respect of Housing 
and the extent to 
which this has 
been delivered. 

P
age 26



Council Enforcement 
arrangements including 
the extent to which 
enforcement powers are 
looked at in a silo or 
corporate way to ensure 
that (with in the purposes 
of particular enforcement 
powers) the Council 
considers the ability to 
address non- 
compliances robustly. 
 
 
 

Through Task 
and Finish 
Group. 
 
[This continues 
the work in 
2323/24 where 
enforcement 
arrangements 
around planning, 
fly tipping and 
use of mobile 
CCTV was 
examined].  

⧠ Championing 
our local 
environment 

 
⧠ Pride in our area 

and services to 
residents 

 
⧠ Promoting our 

heritage offer, 
attracting visitors 
and encouraging 
them to stay 
longer 

 
⧠ Financial 

sustainability and 
openness 

 

The detail to the 
extent to which the 
Corporate 
Enforcement Group 
has provided the route 
to ensuring a 
corporate 
consideration to 
utilising a range of 
enforcement powers 
to address problem 
premises.  
An update on the 
implementation of 
recommendations 
made in 2023/24 
around planning, fly 
tipping and the use of 
mobile CCTV as part 
of enforcement. 

Leader of the 
Council  
 
Corporate 
Director for 
Operations and 
Delivery 
 
Assistant  
Director, 
Partnerships 
 
Appropriate 
Portfolio 
Holders and 
Officers 

To identify any 
possible areas for 
improved 
enforcement 
arrangements and 
to make 
recommendations 
there on. 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



A.1 APPENDIX B

Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
22 July 2024 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING REPORT 
(Prepared by Keith Durran) 

Recommendation(s) 
Including Date of Meeting and Minute 

   Number 

Actions Taken and Outcome Completed, follow-up work required 
or added to Work Programme 

This Committees Budget meeting on 
10 January 2024 
 
Budget Scrutiny 
 

Recommended that:- 
 
(a) Portfolio Holders review the 

individual cost pressures and cost 
savings across their respective 
service areas and explain how they 
are managing that process; 

(b) this Committee must be consulted 
on both the review of the Housing 
Strategy and on any revised Strategy 
proposals that come forward before 
the Cabinet makes any decisions on 
this matter; 

(c) a longer term Savings Plan be 
produced to ensure longer term 
financial sustainability and that it be 

 
 
The Leaders response: 
 
 

“Firstly, I would like to thank the Committee for 
the work they undertook on the budget and for 
the opportunity to submit answers to the 
questions raised both in writing ahead of their 
formal budget meeting and verbally directly at 
the meeting. 
In terms of the 5 points raised my comments 
are as follows: 
 

(a) Cost pressures and savings are being 
reviewed by Portfolio Holders, and this 
work will continue throughout the year. 
Updates will be provided either via 
separate reports or via the regular 
financial performance reports that also 
form part of the Committee’s work 
during the year.   

(b) As part of the Council’s existing policy 
development framework, the 

 

P
age 29



A.1 APPENDIX B

submitted to this Committee for 
scrutiny in the first quarter of 
2024/2025; 

(d) a review be carried out of the 
Council’s preferred service 
providers/contractors to ensure 
compliance with the Council’s 
Procurement Procedure Rules; and 

(e) a review be carried out on whether to 
introduce a “traffic light” risk 
management system to manage cost 
pressures. 

 

Committee will be consulted on any 
revised Strategy proposals which will 
include the outcome from any review 
process.  

(c) Similarly to the point made in (a) above, 
this essential piece of work will continue 
during the year which will be made 
available to the Committee as part of its 
review of in-year financial performance 
alongside the development of the long 
term forecast. 

(d) It is important to highlight that the 
engagement of any contractor / 
provider by the Council is expected to 
be done so in accordance with the 
procurement rules set out within the 
Council’s Constitution. However, the 
point raised by the Committee will be 
picked up via existing internal control 
arrangements in consultation with 
Services. 

(e) As part of the work set out in point (a) 
above, the introduction of a ‘traffic light’ 
approach to prioritising cost pressure 
items will be considered”. 

 
 
 

 

P
age 30



A.1 APPENDIX B

This Committees meeting on 19 
September 2023 (Minute 29 refers) 
 

SUNSPOTS JAYWICK 

 

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND to 
Cabinet:  

a) That the positive news about 
occupancy rates for the Sunspot 
Centre, Jaywick Sands and the 
intentions around the on-site market 
be noted; and  

b) that the capacity and expertise of the 
Council in costing and programme 
managing major capital schemes of 
the Council be strengthened to avoid 
or minimise unforeseen “mission 
creep” in schemes and unrealistic 
cost assessments being presented as 
part of approval mechanisms (that 
then needing to be repeated when 
true market costings are 
subsequently identified). 

It was further RESOLVED:  
c)  That delivery against the business 

plan compared with the experience in 
the first six months operation of the 
Sunspot Centre, Jaywick Sands be 

 
These recommendations were 
submitted to Cabinet on 15 December 
2023. 
 

The Cabinet report included the 
proposed response of the Portfolio 
Holder as follows: 
 
“The Sunspot is a great success for 
Jaywick, for the Tendring District and the 
Council. The building is already occupied 
with 15 of the 24 business units with a 
tenant in place. Another four units will be 
occupied in January 2024. That will leave 
5 units vacant and just under 80 percent 
occupancy. Officers are going to start 
advertising one of the empty units as a 
‘rent a desk space’ in the new year. The 
café is busy, and the market is popular. 
While capital costs rose across the World 
during the period the Council completed 
the Sunspot, the Council worked closely 
with partners including Essex County 
Council to ensure the project had sufficient 
funds to complete. The success of the 
project has received positive reviews in the 
local and national press, and has been 
used as an exemplar of good practice as 
far afield as Stockton. As with any major 
project, the Council has learnt during the 
process of completing the Sunspot, and 

 

P
age 31



A.1 APPENDIX B

confirmed in the Committee’s Work 
Programme for April 2024.  

 

will be able to apply those lessons to future 
capital schemes. We have increased the 
capital delivery capacity of the 
organisation with the appointment of an 
expert contractor in support of the levelling 
up schemes.” 
 

RESOLVED that the recommendation 
made by the Resources and Services 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee be noted 
and that the response of the Portfolio Holder 
for Economic Growth, Regeneration and 
Tourism thereto be endorsed. 

 
 
Recommendations monitoring for those recommendations from earlier meetings of the Committee have been previously reported to the 
Committee and, as such, are not repeated here as there is no further update to be provided on them.  

P
age 32



APPENDIX C

 
Resources and Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
22 July 2024  
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULE 13 – SCRUTINY OF 
PROPOSED DECISIONS  
(Prepared by Keith Durran)  
 
The below forthcoming decisions are those published since 5 March 2024 – the 
publication date for the Committee’s last ordinary meeting.  
 
In presenting the following, the Committee’s attention is drawn to the agenda item 
notes in respect of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 13.  
 
DESCRIPTION OF DECISION KEY 

DECISION 
– YES/NO 

DECISION 
MAKER 

Decision 
Due 
Date 
 

Long Term Plan for Towns: Clacton Vision 
and Investment Plan 

YES Cabinet 26/07/24 

Levelling Up Partnership YES Cabinet 26/07/24 
Conservation Area Character Appraisals and 
Management Plans and Criteria for Local 
Listing 

YES Cabinet 26/07/24 

Treasury Outturn 2023/24 YES Cabinet 26/07/24 
Financial Outturn 2023/24 and Proposed 
Allocation of the General Fund / HRA 
Variances for the Year 

YES Cabinet 26/07/24 

Waste Strategy for Essex Adoption YES Cabinet 20/09/24 
Removal of 25 areas of land from the Property 
Dealing Procedure following an initial review 
of 69 areas of land under the Procedure 

YES Cabinet 26/07/24 

Housing Rent Setting and Collection Policy YES Cabinet  20/09/24 
New Housing Policy: Neighbourhood 
Management 

YES Cabinet 20/09/24 

Housing Under-Occupation Transfer Incentive 
Policy 

YES Cabinet 20/09/24 

Update on Clacton Civic Quarter and 
Dovercourt Town Centre Improvement 
Corridor Government Funded Capital Projects 

YES Cabinet 18/10/24 

 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	6 Review of the Work Programme
	A.1 Work Programmes  2024-25 (002)
	A.1 Appendix B  Recommendations Monitoring
	A.1 Appendix C Forthcoming Decisions


